FILEI DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA JUN 14 1999 CLERK, SUPREME COURT RONALD CARSON, Ву \_\_\_\_\_ Petitioner, DCA CASE NO.98-2281 vs. CASE NO. STATE OF FLORIDA, Respondent.

#### ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIFTH DISTRICT

#### PETITIONER'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

NANCY RYAN ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER Florida Bar Number 765910 112 Orange Avenue, Suite A Daytona Beach, Florida 32114 Phone: 904/252-3367

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

####

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In case no. CR96-2981, the State Attorney for the Ninth Judicial Circuit (Orange County) filed an information charging the petitioner with several felony offenses, all alleged to have been committed on February 10, 1996. (R 40-44) The petitioner, Ronald Carson, was convicted, after a jury trial, of four of those offenses, i.e., burglary with a battery and a firearm (Count I), attempted second degree murder with a firearm (Count II), attempted robbery with a firearm and a mask (Count III), and possession of a firearm during commission of a felony. (R 53-56) Mr. Carson appealed his judgment and sentence and the Fifth District Court of Appeal, in its case no. 97-259, vacated one of the convictions (Count IV) and declined to address various sentencing issues which had not been preserved for appeal. Carson v. State, 707 So. 2d 898 (Fla. 5<sup>th</sup> DCA 1998). (R 68-70)

On remand to the Circuit Court, the trial court resentenced Mr. Carson on Counts I-III pursuant to a sentencing guidelines scoresheet that omitted reference to the former conviction on Count IV. (R 22-23, 57, 80) The trial court also entertained, and rejected, various defense arguments addressed to computation of the scoresheet. (R 3, 22-24, 27) Mr. Carson again appealed, arguing in appeal no. 98-2281 that the objections he had made on remand to computation of the scoresheet should have been sustained. Mr. Carson also argued in his second appeal, for the first time, that the 1995 sentencing guidelines had been enacted unconstitutionally; he based that argument on the opinion issued in <u>Heggs v. State</u>, 718

So. 2d 263 (Fla.2d DCA), <u>review granted</u> no. 93,851 (Fla. October 1, 1998). (See appendix "A" to this brief) The Fifth District Court affirmed the resentencing order per curiam, with an opinion that read, in its entirety, as follows:

AFFIRMED. See Sections 921.0012, 775.0845, 777.04; Lamont v. State, 610 So. 2d 435 (Fla. 1992); Maddox v. State, 708 So. 2d 617 (Fla. 5<sup>th</sup> DCA), rev. granted, 718 So. 2d 169 (Fla. 1998); Sanders v. State, 621 So. 2d 723 (Fla. 5<sup>th</sup> DCA 1993).

<u>Carson v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1091 (Fla. April 30, 1999) (Attached as Appendix "B" to this brief).

The petitioner timely filed his Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction in the Fifth District Court on June 1, 1999.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision in this case was "paired for review" by the District Court with a case now pending in this court. That case, <u>Maddox v. State</u>, 708 So. 2d 617 (Fla. 5<sup>th</sup> DCA), <u>rev. granted</u>, 719 So. 2d 169 (Fla. 1998), has to do with the scope of jurisdiction in criminal appeals. One of the issues argued on the merits in the appeal of this case, the constitutionality of the 1995 sentencing guidelines, is also pending review in this court. This court has jurisdiction to resolve the substantive matter which was raised but not resolved in this appeal.

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE DECISION IN THIS CASE WAS "PAIRED FOR REVIEW" BY THE DISTRICT COURT WITH THE PENDING CASE <u>MADDOX v. STATE</u>, 708 SO. 2D 617 (FLA. 5<sup>TH</sup> DCA), <u>REV. GRANTED</u> 719 SO. 2D 169 (FLA. 1998).

In <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), this court held that similarly situated litigants should have similar avenues of review in the Florida court system. Pursuant to the procedure outlined in <u>Jollie</u>, the Fifth District court in this case "paired" this case for review with the pending case <u>Maddox</u> <u>v. State</u>, 708 So. 2d 617 (Fla. 5<sup>th</sup> DCA), <u>rev. granted</u>, 719 So. 2d 169 (Fla. 1998), and this court should take jurisdiction for that reason. <u>Maddox</u>, as this court well knows, involves interpretation of the Criminal Appeal Reform Act and will determine to a great extent the scope of review in criminal cases in the District Courts of Appeal.

One of the issues argued on the merits in the appeal of this case, the constitutionality of the 1995 sentencing guidelines, is also pending review in this court in <u>Heggs v. State</u>, 718 So. 2d 263 (Fla.2d DCA), <u>review granted</u> no. 93,851 (Fla. October 1, 1998). This court should take jurisdiction of this case to resolve both the procedural and substantive matters at issue.

#### CONCLUSION

This court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the District Court of Appeal, and it should exercise that jurisdiction to consider the substantive matter raised but not resolved in his appeal.