ORIGINAL



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JUL 0 2 1999

CLERK. By

RONALD CARSON,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. 95,765

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

On Review from the District Court of Appeal of the State of Florida Fifth District

> ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

REBECCA ROARK WALL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #618586 444 Seabreeze Blvd. 5th Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In the instant case, Petitioner is seeking review based on the District Court's *per curiam* decision with a cite to a case which is pending in this Court. However, the issue which Petitioner wants reviewed further has been raised in a **different** case which is pending in this Court -- a case which was **not** cited by the District Court in its appellate decision.

This Court must look to the four corners of the opinion to find express and direct conflict in order to properly exercise its discretionary jurisdiction. Here, the opinion does not include any reference to the case with which Petitioner seeks to "pair" in order to get further review of his sentence. Therefore, this court should not take jurisdiction in this case.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE PRESENTED

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT EXERCISE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS CASE BECAUSE NO REASONS EXIST FOR SUCH JURISDICTION.

This court's jurisdiction is defined by Article V of the Florida Constitution (1991). Article V, §3(b) expressly sets out this court's jurisdiction, describing every situation in which this court has or may take jurisdiction. Art. V, §3(b), Fla. Const. (1991). That jurisdiction is also set out in Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a).

When determining whether to exercise discretionary jurisdiction, this court must look to the four corners of the opinions to find that conflict. *Reaves v. State*, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986). It is well-established that "a district court of appeal per curiam opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending in or has been reversed by this Court continues to constitute prima facie express conflict and allows this Court to exercise its jurisdiction." *Jollie v. State*, 405 So. 2d 418 at 420 (Fla. 1981).

In the instant case, Petitioner points to the District Court's per curiam decision as establishing jurisdiction because the decision included a citation to Maddox v. State, 708 So. 2d 617

(Fla. 5th DCA), rev. granted, 718 So. 2d 169 (Fla. 1998). As of this date, *Maddox* is still pending in this court.

However, Petitioner is asking this court to review his challenge to the constitutionality of the 1995 sentencing guidelines, and points to **another** case to seek jurisdiction on this issue. Petitioner is seeking jurisdiction pursuant to *Maddox*, but is actually asking this court to review a totally different issue -- the issue raised in *Heqgs v. State*, 718 So. 2d 263 (Fla. 2d DCA), *rev. granted*, 720 So. 2d 518 (Fla. 1998).

Clearly, though, there is absolutely no reference to *Heggs* contained within the four corners of the District Court's decision. Nor is there any acknowledgment or recognition that there is any relevant issue pending in this Court. Without such reference, indicating that the District Court intended to "pair" the instant case with *Heggs* or any other case, this Court should not take jurisdiction.

This Court's decision in *Jollic* explains why it looks to the District Court's citations to find the need to take jurisdiction. This Court pointed out that when a District Court makes a specific reference to a pending case, and specifically "stat[es] that the mandate will be withheld pending final disposition of the petition for review, if any, filed in the controlling decision." *Id.* at 420. This is so that the relevant parties can seek consolidation if there is further review of the referenced case. *Id.*

But in the instant case, there was no statement by the District Court indicating that the mandate would be withheld so that the parties could seek consolidation with all of the other pending *Maddox* cases. Nor was there any reference whatsoever to *Heggs*. In short, there is no indication contained in the District Court's decision that there is any issue which would be effected by the pending *Heggs* case.

Therefore, while this court can take jurisdiction pursuant to *Jollie*, there is no reason for this court to take the instant case under the umbrella of *Maddox* when Petitioner is actually seeking review of a *Heggs* claim.

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, Respondent respectfully asks this honorable court to deny jurisdiction in this matter.